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Location: Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, Pennsylvnia

USGS Pittsburgh West Quadrangle
Universal Transverse Mercator Coordinates:

17.584130.4478890
Present Owner: Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh.
Present Use: Abandoned.
Significance: This house is significant as a local example of a middle-class urban residence dating from

the last quarter of the nineteenth century. It was erected eight or nine years following a
devastating fire in 1874 that destroyed 199 buildings in the surrounding neighborhood.
The other streets in the same block are dominated by a mix of row houses and
commercial architecture, the latter generally concentrated along Federal Street, one block
to the east of Reddour, and by West North Avenue, two blocks south of the house. The
dwelling at 1222 Reddour Street stands out from the mixed urban background of row
houses and stores in its block as what is probably the oldest surviving example of a
modest, middle-class, free-standing residence in the block.
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PART I HISTORICAL INFORMATION
A. Physical History:

1. Date of erection. This Victorian ell-shaped house was most probably constructed after the acquisition
of the property by Mary A. Anderson in June, 1882. Since the house first appears on the 1884 Sanborn
Insurance Company map, the house was probably erected after Anderson's purchase of the property in 1882
or during 1883.

2. Architect. It is not known whether this house was designed by an architect or was simply erected by a
contractor or builder, perhaps working from pattern books.

3. Original and Subsequent Owners: 1222 Reddour Street was built on a double lot ca. 1882-1883.
It apparently always has been used as a private residence. The first private deed for the land dates to 1850,
but historical maps reflect no buildings on this corner until 1884. The first owner and possible builder of
the house was Mary A. Anderson. Anderson subsequently sold the house and property to Emma Krempel
in on May 29, 1887. Krempel continued to own the property until 1911, and it seems to have been
occupied by her and by several men of the same surname, who may have been her father, husband, or
brothers. A city directory for 1888 records that Peter Krembel (sic), whose occupation the directory gives
as "warehouseman”, then resided at this address. The relationship between Peter "Krembel” and Emma L.
Krempel has not been determined. A subsequent city directory for 1890-1891, lists Peter Krempel and
Frank Krempel as "salesmen” who lived at the 1222 Reddour Street address. Peter Krempel was still living
in the house at least as late as 1909. The occupations of these men (warehouseman and later salesmen) as
given in city directories reflect a working-class or middle-class socio-economic context that is in keeping
with the historical background of the neighborhood. By 1925, A. E. Thompson is shown as the owner of
the house. Subsequent owners have included William Lowry and Margaret Kohm, who sold it to Thaddeus
F. and Mona Kaczrowski in November 1992. The Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh obtained
the property from the Kaczorowskis in September 1996 through a Declaration of Taking.

4. Contractors: No contractors for the 1222 Reddour Street house have been identified.

5. Original Plans and Construction: No original plans or blueprints for the 1222 Reddour Street house
have been identified.

6. Alterations and Additions: Although the house is in deteriorated physical condition today, few
changes seem to have been made to its exterior. Historical maps reflect no major changes to the outline or
footprint of the house since its construction ca. 1882-1883.

B. Historical Context:

Federal Street leads north out of the Allegheny River Valley at Pittsburgh and has been a significant
corridor of travel, communication, and commerce since before the arrival of Euro-American settlers in the
mid-eighteenth century. It follows the route of the old Ohio Forks Path of the Kuskusky Trail, which once
connected the Indian settlement of Shannopin's Town (ca. 1720-1758) in Pittsburgh's Lawrenceville
neighborhood, with the equally important Native American villages of Old Kuskusky and New Kuskusky,
on the Allegheny River near today's New Castle, Pennsylvania.
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Due in part to the presence of this significant transportation route along today's Federal Street, the area near
the intersection of West North' Avenue and Federal Street developed near the heart of the town of
Allegheny. This early town had its beginnings as part of the 23,000-acre Reserve Tract, a huge set-aside
established in 1783 to compensate the service of Revolutionary War veterans through grants of land. In
1787, the Pennsylvania state legislature provided for Washington (Pennsylvania) lawyer David Redick to
lay out "Alleghenytown" in this wilderness on the north side of the Allegheny River opposite Fort Pitt
(Pittsburgh). "Alleghenytown" was designated as the original county seat of the new county of Allegheny
in 1788, but protests from Pittsburgh's residents soon changed that. Allegheny's growth was further stunted
by the lingering possibilities of Indian raids on this the northern or "Indian side” of the Allegheny River
until the mid-1790s. Even as late as 1825, only some 85 homes had been built in Allegheny Borough.

Drawing on urban models rooted in the layout of medieval European towns, Redick's plan included a four-
block core for the erection of public buildings that was surrounded by 102 acres set aside for common
usage; these were designated the north, south, east, and west commons. Outside the commons areas,
Redick's plan also provided for a series of outlots. The project area of the Urban Redevelopment Authority
of Pittsburgh (URA) that is the subject of this Historic American Building Survey (HABS) project falls
within the area of outlots 177 and 178 of this original plan, land that was first owned by John Irvin when
the Reserve Tract lots were sold. West North Avenue, the southern boundary of the current URA project
area, also demarcates the northern boundary of the original commons. Thus, the earliest residents of West
North Avenue between Federal Street and today's Reddour Street looked south toward the open space of
the commons, and, at a distance toward the developing city of Pittsburgh across the Allegheny River.
Although a few modern buildings now block the view of Pittsburgh's Golden Triangle, West North Avenue
still directly borders the original commons area, which continues in use as a public park.

The ell-shaped dwelling at 1222 Reddour Street stands at the corner of Reddour (first called Middle Alley,
later Race Street) and Pernod Street (first named Margaret Alley, later West Pearl Street) in the Central
Northside Historic District of the City of Pittsburgh.. Originally, the street address of the house was
recorded as 38 Race Street. Shortly after the beginning of the twentieth century, however, the street
address was changed to 1222 Race Street and later to 1222 Reddour Street. The house is thought to have
been constructed ca. 1882-1883, but construction of residences and commercial buildings was underway on
neighboring streets as early as the 1840s. The "Mexican War Streets" neighborhood (now a National
Register historic district) located just west of Reddour Street, was undergoing residential development as
early as 1848. In addition, William Leckey had filed a plan to develop residential lots one block north of
the 1222 Reddour Street house along the south side of present Sampsonia Street between Federal and
Beaver (now Arch) Streets as early as 1840.

The first deed for the land at 1222 Reddour dates to June 11, 1850 when the Treasurer of Allegheny County
conveyed the property to John McDonough. The 1851 Day and Cramer map of this portion of Allegheny
shows that Margaret Alley (Pernod Street) was also cut through the block between Eloise and Sampsonia
Streets about this time, providing direct access between Reddour Street and the busy Federal Street
corridor. The creation of Pernod Street almost certainly played a major role in the subsequent residential
and commercial development of the Federal Street-Eloise-West North-Reddour-Pernod Street block during
the second half of the nineteenth century.

Whether or not John McDonough built on the property or made other improvements to it is not known, but
it appears that he did not. In 1872, the G. M. Hopkins & Company atlas shows no home or other building
on the double corner lot at 1222 Reddour, although many other lots within the block then were occupied by
homes as well as by shops and other commercial enterprises. (Wording on the atlas map suggests that the
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property then belonged to "H.B. Donald", but the last name is not clear on the map, and it may be a
cartographer's mistake for "McDonough.")!

If any buildings or structures were erected on McDonough's property between 1872 and 1874, however,
they were likely destroyed in the widespread fire that struck this portion of Allegheny City on July 4, 1874.
It is supposed that the fire began when a firecracker ignited a pile of wood shavings adjacent to the frame-
construction carpenter shop owned by Cresswell and Burgoyne at 255-257 Federal Street, less than one
block north and one block east of 1222 Reddour Street. The fire quickly spread over an area of some four
acres west of Federal Street to Arch Street and south from present Sampsonia Street to Eloise Street,
consuming an estimated 199 buildings in its path. The property at 1222 Reddour Street was thus in the
midst of this "burned over” portion of the former city of Allegheny's Second Ward. (Allegheny long
remained a separate city but was subsumed within Pittsburgh in 1907. Old Allegheny's Second Ward is
now part of the Twenty-Second Ward of Pittsburgh.)

Seven years after the 1874 fire, deeds show that John McDonough sold the 1222 Reddour Street property to
W.L. Bollman and his wife. The Bollmans held it for only about six months, however, before selling it in
June 1882 to Mary A. Anderson. Anderson was probably responsible for building the house, which is
depicted on the 1884 Sanborn Insurance Company map. Due in part to the devastating effects of the 1874
fire on the fabric of the surrounding neighborhood, the house is the best surviving example of a free-
standing nineteenth-century residence in the redevelopment area, even though it is modest in both scale and
design and is currently in deteriorated physical condition.

PARTJI. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

A. General Statement:

1. Architectural Character. This ell-shaped house is a fine example of the Italianate/Second Empire
style applied to a freestanding brick dwelling. Its most characteristic features include a mansard roof with a
bracketed cornice and incised segmental arched windows.

2. Condition of Fabric. The overall condition of the exterior appears to be fair. On the south elevation of
the main block, some deterioration of the brick is evident. The condition of the interior fabric is fair, due to
general deterioration and apparent water damage.
B. Description of Exterior:

1. Overall Dimensions. 1222 Reddour Street is ell shaped, with its primary facade facing west. The main
block measures 20’-1” in width and 30°-2" in depth. The ell at the southeast corner measures 10°-2” in
width and 12’ in depth. It rises two stories plus a mansard roof above the street level.

2. Foundations. The foundation is of smooth dressed stone with a stone water table.

3. Walls. The building is of red brick in a running-bond pattern.

4. Structural Systems. 1222 Reddour Street is a combination of load-bearing brick walls and wood frame
construction.
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5. Porch. On the west side of the ell is a one story porch with a flat roof supported by square posts and a
balustrade with square balusters. The floor of the porch is of wood.

6. Chimneys. 1222 Reddour Street has three interior brick chimneys, two on the north side and one on the
east side. They appear to have been repaired above the cornice line, and possibly extended above their
original corbeled caps.

7. Openings.

a. Doorways and doors. The two main entrances, on the west side, are transomed. The main
entrance has an incised hood and double doors, each with two panels. The porch entrance has an
incised lintel and a single four-panel door.

b. Windows. The windows that survive, believed to be original, are one-over-one double hung
wood sash with a simple profile. All have been boarded over except two on the third floor.

8. Roof.

a. Shape, covering. The roof is a straight-sided mansard with rectangular and hexagonal gray
slate tiles.

b. Cornice, eaves. Box cornices define the top and bottom of the mansard. The lower cornice
rests on brackets.

¢. Dormers. Five dormers pierce the roof. They are flat roofed with incised ornament and
brackets under the cornice; brackets also flank each dormer at its base. The dormer on the west
facade of the main block features a pair of round arched windows. All dormer windows are
double hung sash.

C. Description of Interior:
1. Floor plans. See attached sketch plans.

2. Stairways. The building has one stairway, located in a side hall along the south wall of the main block.
It serves all three floors plus the basement. It features a polygonal and turned newel post and balusters, as
well as incised sawn brackets.

3. Flooring. The floor is wood throughout, although it has been obscured in some areas by carpeting.

4. Wall and ceiling finish. The walls and ceilings are of plaster over wood lath. In the two rooms of the
main block first floor, plaster crown molds originally ran the perimeter of the room; they have fallen off in
several places. The walls and ceilings have painted finishes, most of which are cracked and peeling. In the
first floor room of the ell (kitchen), the wall is wainscoted in vertical tongue and groove boards below a
chair rail.



D. Site:

1222 REDDOUR STREET (House)
HABS No. PA-6190

(Page 6)

5. Openings:
a. Doorways and doors. The interior doors are transomed four panel doors. The two rooms of
the main block first floor are separated by a pair of pocket doors with raised panels which match

the other doors in the house.

b. Windows. The windows are trimmed in wood casing of heavy profile. In the two rooms of
the main block first floor, the windows have recessed wood panels below.

6. Decorative features and trim. Three marble mantels survive in the house: one in the rear (east) room
of the first floor main block, and one in each of the two rooms of the main block second floor. The first
floor mantel features a simple routed ornament and a central keystone, with an arched opening and cast iron
insert. Each of the two second floor mantels is of veined marble with contrasting marble inlaid panels,
incised star patterns, and a rectangular cast iron insert with floral relief patterns.

7. Hardware. With the exception of door hinges, most original visible hardware has been removed.

8. Mechanical Equipment: The mechanical equipment is non-original.

9. Original Furnishings. No original furnishings survive.

1. General setting and orientation. 1222 Reddour Street sits on a lot at the southwest comer of Reddour
and Pernod Streets, with no setbacks from the sidewalks. The lot measures approximately 30 feet along
Pernod Street and approximately 60 feet along Reddour Street.

2. Historic landscape design. The unbuilt portion of the lot is heavily overgrown. No original landscape
features are evident.

3. Outbuildings. There are no outbuildings associated with the property.

ART 1. SOURCES OF IN ATI

A. Architectural Drawings. No architectural drawings for the 1222 Reddour Street house are known.

B. Historic Views. No historic photographic views of the 1222 Reddour Street house are known.
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PART IV. PROJECT INFORMATION

The City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's Department of City Planning certified the three-block Federal North
Redevelopment Area in 1989. In 1995, Pittsburgh adopted a redevelopment plan developed in conjunction with
citizens of the Federal North neighborhood, which is part of the larger Central Northside National Register-Eligible
Historic District. Two previous land-use histories and archaeological visual evaluations were conducted for the
project area in 1990 and in 1995. These studies established the historical and archaeological baseline documentation
for the project area and recommended the need for additional studies. In consultation with the Pennsylvania State
Historic Preservation Officer (PASHPO) and the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP), the Pittsburgh
City Planning Commission subsequently determined that the proposed redevelopment efforts in the Federal North
neighborhood would have an effect on potentially National Register of Historic Places-eligible historic properties .
A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was therefore entered into that provided for archaeological testing in an area
called "Block #1" and Historic American Building Survey (HABS) recording of 14 buildings in "Block #2." Block
#1 includes an area bounded by Federal Street on the east, Pernod Street on the south, Reddour Street on the west,
and Sampsonia Street on the north. Block #2 includes an area bounded by Federal Street on the east, Eloise Street
on the south, Reddour Street on the west, and Pernod Street on the north. The dwelling at 1222 Reddour Street is
located in Block # 2 at the intersection of Pernod and Reddour Streets. The MOA authorized the recording of 13 of
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the 14 buildings in Block #2 using the HABS "short form" and appropriate photo-documentation. The fourteenth
building, the house at 1222 Reddour Street described above, was recorded using the HABS "outline format" and
appropriate photo-documentation.

Prepared By: Ronald C. Carlisle, Ph.D, and Eliza Smith Brown
Brown Carlisle & Associates, Inc.
Title: Historic Structures Consultants

Date: November 1996
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